
_____ 0.13 ______ 10.84

_____ 0.13 ______ 28.887

Mileage 
totals 
addedby 

P. DeAndrea
VTrans
3/1/2023
based on
Selectboard
amendment
2/27/2023

-0.13 CL3 mi TH-11 (Shepardson Rd) discontinued

Note added by 
P. DeAndrea
VTrans
3/1/2023
based on
Selectboard
amendment
2/27/2023

0.000

16.710

1.337

0.000

0.58

0.00
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TOWN HWY 11
SHEPARDSON RD

GREEN MOUNTAIN
NATIONAL FOREST

TH-11

Mileage Certificate Changes 2023
STRATTON

(CTUA:1316-0)
(CERTCODE:1316-0)Mapping Section

Division of Policy and Planning
Vermont Agency of Transportation -- March 1, 2023

±
0 0.045Miles

Designated CL4 Not Up To Standard (NUTS) pursuant to 19 V.S.A. 305(a):  
-0.03 mi CL3 TH-138 (Bright St),  
-0.08 mi CL3 TH-158 (Church St) 
-0.20 mi CL3 TH-180 (Depot St)
-0.03 mi CL3 TH-205 (Front St)
-0.01 mi CL3 TH-236 (Hyde St)
-0.22 mi CL3 TH-338 (Sanitary Landfill Ln)

-0.13 mi CL3 TH-11 (Shepardson Rd)
discontinued
(CL3 TH-11  from 0.45 mi to 0.32 mi)

STRATTON
1316-0

Locus Map
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From: DeAndrea, Pam
To: garage@townofstrattonvt.com; "Young, Kent"
Cc: AOT - Mileage Certificates
Subject: RE: Progression of TH-11 on Stratton Town Highway Map
Date: Monday, February 6, 2023 2:33:00 PM
Attachments: TH11_Stratton_RoadMeasurementsInventory.pdf

image004.png
image007.png
image009.png
image010.png
image011.png

Hi again Chris and Kent,
 
I also meant to attach this Road inventory from 1990 that shows the road ending at 0.38 miles from West Jamaica Rd
and intersects with the NFH and a Class 4 and untraveled portion of TH-11.  This mileage matches what I measure in the
GIS from West Jamaica Rd to the turn-around.
 
Thank you,
 
Pam
 
Pamela DeAndrea (she/her) | AOT GIS Professional III, Mapping Section
Vermont Agency of Transportation
219 North Main Street | Barre, VT 05641
802-793-7555 | pam.deandrea@vermont.gov
 

 

From: DeAndrea, Pam 
Sent: Monday, February 6, 2023 12:48 PM
To: garage@townofstrattonvt.com; Young, Kent <townclerk@townofstrattonvt.com>
Cc: AOT - Mileage Certificates <AOT.MileageCertificates@vermont.gov>
Subject: Progression of TH-11 on Stratton Town Highway Map
 
Hi Chris and Kent,
 
It was great talking with you this morning and getting some clarity on TH-11.  The following are some images of
how we have mapped TH-11 in the past.  The first image is the most recent Town Highway map for Stratton
which we did in 2020.  The second image shows the map from 2015, which clearly shows a longer line and
includes a 0.07-mile portion that we have coded as private.  As I mention, this may have been a mistake on our
part to code this as private because we have no documentation on a discontinuance on that piece of road from

2015 to 2020. You can see this section better in the 3rd image highlighted in blue north of the turn-around.  I
also marked the National Forest Boundary with a red arrow on this image.  If I measure the currently mapped
road from the National Forest Boundary, I get 0.13 miles.
 
I thought about this a little more and I don’t want to make things more confusing or muddled, but I am
wondering if we really should nail down where the original Town road was located.  When I look through historic
data, information does not line up exactly.  For instance, in the Parcel data the Town right of way (ROW) for TH-

11 makes a sharp turn to the west (marked with a blue arrow in the 3rd image), but the Town road as we have it
mapped continues to the North as Chris mentioned.  Kent, I think you said that this ROW to the west was a
National Forest road and not a Town ROW.  If you could confirm that with me that would be great. 
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We did find some more clues to the history of the Town road, although they not confirmations of legally laid out

Town Highway locations.  When I look at this area with elevation data (see 4th image below), you can really see
old road beds (highlighted in yellow) and an old foundation of a previous building north of the road (red arrow). 
The historic Beers map for Stratton matches what we see in the elevation data (see the final image of the Beers
Atlas).  On the Beers image, I put another red arrow to correspond with what I think may be the house (E. Grout)
corresponding with the old foundation in the elevation data.  On both images I put a blue arrow to indicate the
intersection of the two old roads.  The original measures are shown in Rods on the Beers atlas and translate as
0.28 miles from West Jamaica Rd and 0.47 miles from the intersection to the end of the road.
 
Kent, if you can find the original laying out information for the road this may really help us to map it correctly
and then accurately discontinue the correct piece of road per the Selectboard’s intent.  Thank you so much and
feel free to give me a call back to discuss.
 
2020 Town Highway Map                                                                   2015 Town Highway Map
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TH-11 with satellite imagery and Parcel data in orange:
 

 
Area with elevation data:
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Beers map:
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Best,
 
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
To: garage@townofstrattonvt.com; Young, Kent
Subject: TH-11 Discontinuance
Date: Wednesday, January 25, 2023 2:47:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png

Good afternoon Kent and Chris,
 
Thank you so much for the 2023 Mileage Certificate for Stratton that we recently received in the mail.  In order
to accurately map where the section of discontinuance is located and subtract the correct AOT miles from the
certificate, we need a little clarification.  We have data on the National Forest Boundary, which is what is
indicated as the beginning of the discontinuance, however, this data is not always accurate.  The mileage
indicated on the certificate is equal to 0.15 miles, but we want to be sure we are starting at the correct location
before we designate this as discontinued in our data. 
 
If you look at the image below, you can see how we currently have the road mapped (black and white dashed
line).  The green line is road data that is currently designated as private, but that is probably an error from the
past where the ROW parcel boundary was used to cut off the road.  It looks like the ROW actually continued to
the west.  You can see two boundary lines for the NF Boundary (orange is from the parcel data set and black is
from the VT Department of Conservation).  We really can’t rely on either data set to put a point for the beginning
of the discontinued section, so if you could please print this image and mark where the discontinuance should
start, that would be very helpful. 
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Also, since the road is within the National Forest, did you notify the US Forest Service? I do see according to the
report you sent that you notified the Vermont Department of Forest, Parks and Recreation, but I could not find
notice to the USFS.  We assume you did so since they are the landowner, but just want to be sure. 
 
Thank you so much for your help,
 
Pam
 
 
 
Pamela DeAndrea | AOT GIS Professional III
Policy, Planning & Research Bureau – Mapping Section
Policy, Planning & Intermodal Development Division
Vermont Agency of Transportation
219 North Main Street | Barre, VT 05641
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802-793-7555 phone | pam.deandrea@vermont.gov
http://vtrans.vermont.gov
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